
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Board Packet 

August 25, 2022 

 

 

 
  



August 23, 2022 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, August 23, 2022   

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
 AGENDA  

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams                       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden                                                                                        Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
Neilan McPartland                                  Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 
  
        
                                 GUESTS:     Paul Kramer, Project Director, NV5 
                                                                                                           Kurt Broeckelmann, Architect, bcDG 
                                                                                                           Gary Hicks, Financial Advisor 
                                                                                                           Brandon Potts, Bouten Construction 
                                                                                                           Nick Gonzalez, Bouten Construction 
                                                                                                            

                   
  I.  CALL TO ORDER 
                   

 
 II.   SERVICES 
        A.  Replacement Facility Update                         

            1. Design Updates                                                                                                      
                   a. MDNS/SEPA (Attachment E)                                                                                        NV5 
                   b. SVID                                                                                                                                  NV5 

      c. DOH/USDA/City of Prosser Reviews                                                               bcDG/NV5 
                      
            2. Construction/Schedule/Budget                                                                                                                  
                   a. Bid Process Update                                                                                                       Bouten 
                   b. GC/CM Contracts A133 (Attachment G) A201 (Attachment H)                          NV5 
                   c. Initial MACC (Attachment JJ), (Attachment K) (Attachment L)                           Bouten 
                   d. Schedule (Attachment D)                                                                                           NV5/Bouten    
                   e. Budget (Attachment M) (Attachment N)                                                                NV5                                   
            
 
       

 
  



August 23, 2022 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
           3. Financing                                                                                                                                 Gary 
 a. USDA 
                b. Equipment Lease 

                c. Construction Loan 
 
       B. Capital Equipment Request 
             1. Family Birthplace Sofa Sleepers (Attachment P)                                                Merry 
      
         
 
        
   III.  ADJOURN  



 

August 25, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
THURSDAY, August 25, 2022     

6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
  AGENDA 

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams        Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

              Keith Sattler                       Kristi Mellema, CQO  
              Brandon Bowden       Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
              Neilan McPartland                                                                                                 Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO      
                                   
                    
   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
   
 
  II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Agenda 
 
 
 IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Consent Agenda 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for July 28, 2022.    
       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers #166480 through #167132 dated 07-21-22 through 08-17-22 in the amount of 
             $6,446,637.88. 
                   
 V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.  Medical Staff Report and Credentialing       Dr. Hashmi     
             Action Requested - Advancement from Provisional 
             1. Advancement from Provisional           

Jayme Thompson, DO – Active Staff privileges in Family Medicine effective September 1, 2022, through February 28, 
2024. 
Michael Chen, MD – Telemedicine Staff privileges in Neurology effective September 1, 2022, through February 28, 
2024. 
 Mohammad Hirzallah, MD – Telemedicine privileges in Neurology effective September 1. 2022 through February 28,              
2024.   
 



 

August 25, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

          2. New Appointment 
               Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinic Privileges 

 Jeffrey Johnson, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff with requested privileges in General Surgery effective 
September 1, 2022, through February 28, 2023. 

 
Byron Wright, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff with requested privileges in General Surgery effective 
September 1, 2022, through February 28, 2023. 

 
         3.  Reappointment 
  Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges 

Richard Unger, DO – Reappointment to Active Staff with requested privileges in General Surgery effective 
September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 

             Katheryn Norris, DO – Reappointment to Courtesy Staff with requested privileges in Family Medicine effective 
September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 

             Flint Orr, MD – Reappointment to Courtesy Staff with requested privileges in Internal Medicine effective 
September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 
Praveen Korimerla, MD – Reappointment to Consulting Staff with requested privileges in Cardiology effective 
September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 
Jeffrey Lehr, MD – Reappointment to Consulting Staff with requested privileges in Cardiology effective 
September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 
Dane Sandquist, MD – Reappointment to Consulting Staff with requested privileges in Pathology effective 
September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 
Joseph Freeburg, MD – Reappointment to the Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 
Yi Mao, MD – Reappointment to the Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 
Kyle Ogami, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 
Kishan Patel, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 

 
            
    
VI.   FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
         A.  Review Financial Reports for July 2022 (Attachment X)                                                                            David 
               Action Requested – Financial Reports 

  B.  Capital Request- Family Birthplace Sofa Sleepers (Attachment P)                                                            Merry 
               Action Requested-(4) Family Birthplace Sofa Sleepers at a cost not to exceed $28,303.29 
 
 
VII. SERVICES 
        A. Initial MACC- (Attachment JJ) (Attachment K) (Attachment L)                                                                   Craig 
              Action Requested- Initial MACC                                                                                                                        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   



 

August 25, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 VIII.  QUALITY 
 
         A.  Legislative and Political Updates                                                                                              Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
         B.   CEO/Operations Report                            Craig  
 
  
  IX.  ADJOURN 
 
  



 

 

 
PMH 

Board of Commissioners 
Work Plan – FY2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
January 
 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve 2022 Strategic Plan 
and 2022 Patient Care Scorecards 

• Sign Financial Disclosure and Conflict 
of Interest Statements 

• Approve 2022 Risk Management and 
Quality Assurance Plans 

• Select and Approve Board Officers 

• Review Board Committee structure 
and membership 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve acquisition of surgical 
equipment 

• Approve radiologist contracts 

• Approve Construction Loan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Employee Engagement 
Survey Results 

• Review 2021 Medical Staff 
Engagement Survey Results 

 
QUALITY: 

• Review Board Self-Evaluation 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review semi-annual financial 
performance report for PMH Clinics 

 
SERVICES: 
     Replacement Facility Update 

• Construction Loan Schedule Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
February SERVICES: 

• Approve construction mini-MACC 

• Approve construction documents 
 

QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Board Action Plan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend AHA Governance Conference  
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary report 

• Review Patient Engagement Plan 
 
SERVICES: 

Replacement Facility Update:  

• Construction Documents 

• Mini-MACC 

• Schedule 

March QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2022 Corporate Compliance 
Plan 

• Approve 2022 Infection Prevention 
Control Plan 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 

 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Providers’ Day Celebration 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accept 2021 Audit Report 
 
SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 

 
 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review 2021 Utilization Review 
Performance 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review 2021 Corporate Compliance 
Report  

• Review 2021 Infection Prevention 
Summary 
 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Performance 
Report 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Presentation of the 2021 Audit 
Report by Auditors 

• Capital Campaign Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
PATIENT LOYALTY 

• Approve the 2022 Utilization Review 
Plan 

 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 

April QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Community Benefits 
Report 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Conduct CEO Evaluation 
 

SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 
QUALITY: 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Review 2021 Community Benefits 
Report 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Leadership Performance 
(LEM) 

• Review Employee Engagement Plan 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 FPPE/OPPE Summary 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Interpreter Services Plan 

• Call Center Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
May EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Hospital Week 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Medical Staff Engagement Plan 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Employee Retirement Update 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Customer Service Program 
 
 

June QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2021 CAH Annual Report 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2022 Cost Report 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Report 2022 Q1 Utilization Review 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leader Assessment and 
Development Program 
 

SERVICES: 

• Marketing Update 

• PMH Telehealth Update 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accounting Software Update 
 

July MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend BOC, Medical Staff and 
Leadership Engagement Activity 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Single Audit 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Review PMH Clinic productivity 
 
 

QUALITY: 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
 

 
 

• Quality Committee Report 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Board Judiciary Responsibilities 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Human Resources Update 

• Review Leadership and Exempt Wage 
Scales 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

• Foundation Update 
 

August EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend end of summer Engagement 
Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
all staff 

 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 

 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Benefit Changes 

• Review Leadership Development 
Activities 

 
SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility update 
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Nurse Educator Update 

October  QUALITY: 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
• Conduct 2023 Strategic Planning  

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
 
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leadership Accountability 
Resource Tools 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary 
 

November FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Property Tax 
Request for County Commissioners 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update 
 
SERVICES: 

• Review draft 2023 Strategic Plan; 
2023 Marketing and IT Plans; and 
Medical Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Non-exempt (union) 
performance evaluation template 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review draft 2023 Budget 
 

December QUALITY: 

• Complete Board Self-Evaluations 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve the 2023 Environment of 
Care Plan 

 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review the 2022 Environment of 
Care Plan 
 

 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
SERVICES: 

• Approve 2023 Strategic Plan; 2023 
Marketing and IT Plans; and Medical 
Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2023 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 

• Banking relationship Selection 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend holiday celebration 
 

 



                       2022 -  Patient Care Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 2020

Quality

Left Without Being Seen <0.80% 2.02% 1.47% 0.88% 2.25% 2.97% 3.88% 2.89% 2.43% 1.47% 0.80%

Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients <44 min 53             56             51             51             45             51             53                  51             60 70

Median Time from ED Arrival to Departure for Discharged ED Patients <107 min 109           115           114           114           110           134           128                118           117 128

Severe Preeclamptic Mothers:  Timely Treatment Rate >90.00% 42.86% 57.14% 86.21% 60.00% 84.62% 90.91% 88.89% 69.72% N/A N/A

All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions <2.70% 10.61% 2.74% 4.92% 3.77% 5.45% 9.09% 5.63% 5.91% 5.80% 3.80%

Sepsis - Early Management Bundle >94.40% 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 95.00% 94.40% 72.73%

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0% 0.29%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result  <21.89% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 26.83% 23.56% 21.89% 27.61%

Medication Reconciliation Completed >90.00% 96.30% 94.74% 90.74% 92.00% 88.00% 85.00% 76.67% 88.83% 46% 47.15%

Turnaround time of 30 minutes or less for STAT testing <30 min 22.0         21.0         21.0         21.0         19.0         19.0         18.0              20.1         38 37.5

Median Time to ECG for Patients Presenting to the ED with Chest Pain < 6.3 min 5.0            3.0            5.0            5.0            4.0            4.0            5.0                 4.4            6.3 7

Surgical Site Infection <0.19% 0.00% 0.59% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.05% 0.19% 0.25%

Bar Code Scanning:  Medication Compliance >93.50% 94.91% 95.77% 95.43% 95.00% 94.54% 93.76% 91.55%      94.42% 93.50% 98.90%

Bar Code Scanning:  Patient Compliance >94.70% 96.42% 95.81% 96.17% 96.16% 95.95% 94.83% 92.35%      95.38% 94.70% N/A

*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (iVantage) >61 61             61             36             36             36             36             36                  36             61 53

*Falls with Injury <2 -           -           -           -           -           1               -                1               3 2

Green at or above Goal  (4)

Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)

Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)



                               2022 -  Strategic Plan Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 Avg 2020 Avg

Patient Loyalty

IP - "Would Recommend" >93.1% 94.8% 92.4% 91.7% 92.9% 90.5% 96.4% 79.2% 90.9% 93.1% 87.9%

ED - "Would Recommend" >84.0% 83.9% 81.7% 76.4% 88.0% 88.8% 90.7% 67.7% 85.9% 84.0% 81.4%

Acute Care - "Would Recommend" >91.8% 90.9% 94.4% 87.5% 94.4% 87.5% 91.7% 79.2% 89.2% 91.8% 84.1%

OB - "Would Recommend" >93.6% 99.0% 100.0% 97.7% 100.0% 88.9% 100.0% 75.0% 94.1% 93.6% 92.3%

Outpatient Surgery - "Would Recommend" >96.6% 100.0% 100.0% 97.2% 97.7% 94.4% 95.3% 98.5% 96.4% 96.6% 89.8%

Clinic - "Would Recommend" >91.0% 92.8% 97.5% 91.7% 97.6% 91.8% 94.3% 86.8% 93.5% 91.0% 87.3%

Outpatient - "Would Recommend" >94.1% 98.1% 96.1% 93.5% 96.0% 96.0% 94.8% 94.5% 94.9% 94.1% 88.1%

Composite Score >92.9% 95.7% 95.2% 94.4% 94.1% 93.8% 93.7% 93.2% 93.2% 92.9% N/A

Medical Staff Development

Medical Staff Turnover <10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 4% 0% 1% 12% 0.2%

Prosser Specialty Clinic Visits 1,352       1,386       1,429       1,617       1,428       1,366       1,422       1,272       1,417       1,318       954           

Benton City Clinic Visits 868           775           650           822           657           870           730           718           746           732           837           

Prosser RHC Clinic Visits 1,291       1,063       1,111       1,206       1,106       1,211       1,122       1,152       1,139       1,227       1,226       

Grandview Clinic Visits 969           1,055       833           1,021       873           986           960           904           947           778           589           

Women's Health Center  679           508           600           660           533           611           708           554           596           602           601           

*# of Active Medical Staff >51 52 53 53 54 55 54 55 54 51             45             

Employee Development

403(B) Participation Rate >98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 46%

Average Recruitment Time (days) <21 19 26 40 11 15 19 22 22             21             32             

# of Open Positions (Vacancies) <23 32 28 35 31 32 39 39 34             32             29             

Hours of Overtime - Overtime/Total Hours Worked <4.5% 6.8% 5.3% 4.9% 6.0% 6.3% 6.1% 8.2% 6.2% 6.1% 5.9%

Agency - Cost/Total Labor <7.7% 6.2% 10.6% 6.9% 6.9% 5.7% 7.9% 7.7% 7.4% 7.7% 7.6%

Turnover Rate <0.6% 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 1.2% 0.6% 0.9% 0.9% 0.6%

Timely Evaluations >71.8% 95.1% 85.0% 84.2% 93.0% 79.0% 80.0% 79.6% 85.1% 71.8% 70.2%

Education Hours/FTE >2.15 0.64         1.33         1.39         0.95         0.68         0.75         0.44         0.88         1.05         1.22         

New Hire (Tenure) < 1 year <10% 0.6% 0.6% 0% 0.6% 0.3% 0.3% 1.4% 0.5% 10% 0%

* Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injuries <10.25 11 7 7 0 0 6.3 13 6               19.49       10.25       

Quality

ED Encounters - Left Without Being Seen <0.8% 2.0% 1.5% 0.9% 2.3% 3.0% 3.9% 2.9% 2.3% 1.4% 0.8%

*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 3               2               

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.1% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.0% 0.3%

All-Cause Unplanned Readmissions within 30 Days <2.7% 10.6% 2.7% 4.9% 3.7% 5.5% 9.1% 5.6% 6.0% 6.1% 3.8%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result <21.88% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 26.83% 23.56% 21.88% 27.61%

Services

ED Visits 1,083       1,287       949           1,138       1,246       1,448       1,419       1,384       1,267       1,105       805           

Inpatient Admissions 96             123           98             115           102           89             120           121           110           116           83             

OB Deliveries 50             47             41             61             46             41             38             57             47             49             41             

Surgeries and Endoscopies 187           162           170           268           274           288           337           284           255           179           101           

Diagnostic Imaging Procedures 2,851       2,462       2,619       3,134       2,915       2,981       3,091       2,691       2,842       2,992       2,280       

Lab Procedures 14,000     14,139     13,806     14,818     13,359     15,075     14,738     13,972     14,272     14,327     11,768     

Adjusted Patient Days 1,900       1,627       1,819       2,016       1,838       2,127       2,461       2,502       2,056       1,697       1,393       

Therapy Visits 1,651       1,225       1,391       1,542       1,339       1,420       1,701       1,540       1,451       1,453       1,314       

Outpatient Special Procedures Visits 325           241           221           332           249           277           306           364           284           324           247           

Financial Performance

Net Days in Accounts Receivable 50             55             58             55             56             55             55             55             55             51             63             

*Total Margin 6.90% 5.2% 13.6% 13.3% 11.2% 5.2% 16.8% 7.4% 10.7% 18.40% 4.50%

Net Operating Revenue/FTE 19,431$   17,959$   18,695$   21,800$   19,651$   20,465$   21,737$   18,317$   19,803$   20,682$   17,191$   

Labor as % of net Revenue 56.30% 63.18% 52.36% 48.39% 62.85% 60.40% 50.97% 59.42% 56.80% 57.00% 61.30%

Operating Expense/FTE 18,177$   17,959$   16,155$   17,591$   17,598$   19,469$   17,756$   17,086$   17,659$   16,940$   15,891$   

*Days Cash on Hand 109           142           150           154           150           148           152           154           154           155           183           

Commercial % 28.60% 29.90% 30.90% 31.80% 31.70% 31.40% 31.60% 31.60% 31.60% 29.00% 29.00%

Total Labor Expense/Total Expense 60.20% 60.73% 60.33% 59.41% 62.99% 62.87% 60.43% 62.50% 61.32% 61.00% 61.30%

Green at or above Goal 

Yellow within 10% of Goal

Red More than 10% below Goal

*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number



 

 

 

        BOARD MEETING                                                                                  July 28, 2022,                                                WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT                         MEDICAL STAFF                                              GUESTS 

• Steve Kenny Ph.D. 

• Glenn Bestebreur  

• Susan Reams 

• Keith Sattler 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO  

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO (absent) 

• Kristi Mellema, CCQO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers   

              AGENDA                                                                                                                                                              DISCUSSION                                    ACTION      FOLLOW-UP 

   I.    Call to Order  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner 
Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

    

      A. Pledge of Allegiance        

 II.  Public Comment None.  None. None. 

III.  Approve Agenda 
 

None. Commissioner Dietrich made a Motion to 
approve the June 30, 2022, Agenda.  The 
Motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Bestebreur and passed with 7 in favor, 0 
opposed.                 

None. 

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT 
       AGENDA  
      A. Board of Commissioners     
           Meeting Minutes for 
           June 30, 2022. 
       
 
 

None. Commissioner Sattler made a Motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda. The Motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Dietrich           
and passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed.  

None. 



 

 

      B. Payroll & AP Vouchers  
       #165938 through 
      #166479 dated 06.23.22. 

        through 07.20.22 in the     
amount of $7,222,196.25. 

 

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT                                 DISCUSSION                                                                     ACTION                                       FOLLOW-UP 

     A.    Medical Staff Report     
and Credentialing 

 
 
 

  None. 

1. Advancement from 
Provisional 

Dr. Brian Sollers presented the following providers 
for Advancement from Provisional: 
 

            Michael Parmley, MD – Locum Tenens privileges in 
General Surgery effective August 1, 2022 through 
January 31, 2024. 
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the Advancement from 
Provisional Appointment and requested 
Clinical Privileges that were reviewed and 
recommended by the Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and Medical 
Executive Committee for the following 
providers was made by Commissioner 
Reams and seconded by Commissioner 
Bowden.  The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 
0 opposed. 

• Michael Parmley, MD 
 

None. 

                      2.  New Appointments           
 

Dr. Brian Sollers presented the following New 
Appointments:   
 
 Sameh Salama, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens 
Staff with requested privileges in General Surgery 
effective August 1, 2022 through January 31, 2023. 
 
Jung H. Kim, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff 
with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine 
effective   August 1, 2022 through January 31, 
2023. 
  

 

A Motion to approve the New Appointments 
and requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following providers was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner Bowden.  The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 

• Sameh Salama, MD 

• Jung H. Kim, MD 

None. 



 

 

 
. 

 

              3. Reappointment Dr. Brian Sollers presented the following providers 
for Reappointment:   
 
Mimi Lee, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine 
Staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
effective August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2024. 
 
Robert Lada, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine 
Staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
effective August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2024. 
 
Biggya Sapkota, MD – Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Neurology effective August 1, 2022 through July 31, 
2024. 
 
Gulam Ashfaq Khan, MD – Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Neurology effective August 1, 2022 through July 31, 
2024. 
 
Michael Marvi, MD – Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Neurology effective August 1, 2022 through July 31, 
2024. 
 
 Lilith Judd, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine 
Staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
effective August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2024. 
            
 
 

A Motion to approve the reappointment and 
requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following provider was 
made by Commissioner Dietrich and 
seconded by Commissioner Reams.  The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

• Mimi Lee, MD 

• Robert Lada, MD 

• Biggya Sapkota, MD 

• Gulam Ashfaq Khan, MD 

• Michael Marvi, MD 

• Lilith Judd, MD 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

VI.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP                        DISCUSSION                                                                              ACTION                                                       FOLLOW-UP 

      A.  Review Financial  
            Reports for June 
            2022 (Attachment O) 

 

David Rollins presented the June 2022 Financial 
Reports.   
 

A Motion to accept the Financial Reports for 
June 2022, was made by Commissioner 
Bowden, and seconded by Commissioner 
Bestebreur. The Motion passed with 7 in 
favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

VII.   SERVICES 

     A. 2022 Strategic Plan Semi-    
Annual Report 
(Attachment A) 

 

All Pillar Champions gave a brief overview of the six 
pillars and goals for the 2022 Strategic Plan Semi-
Annual Report: Financial Stewardship-David; 
Services-Shannon; Quality-Kristi; Medical Staff-Dr. 
Sollers; Employee Development-Bryon; and Patient 
Loyalty-Merry. 
 

None. None. 

     B. Replacement Facility 
Update 

 

Craig passed out several documents and briefly 
discussed the replacement hospital and updates on 
what Bouten has done for us and their speculation 
for Potential Bids for the Replacement Hospital. 
 

None. None. 

VIII.  QUALITY                                                                        DISCUSSION                                                                        ACTION                                         FOLLOW-UP 

    A. 2022 Strategic and 
Patient Care Scorecard 
Review  

              

Kristi Mellema gave an overview of the 2022 
Strategic and Patient Care Scorecards. 
 
   

None. None. 

B. Legislative and Political   
Updates 

Glenn Bestebreur gave a brief Legislative and 
Political Update. 
 
 
 

None. None. 



 

 

 

C.  CEO/Operations Report Craig provided a brief Operations Report based 
upon his written report included in the July Board 
Packet. Craig also encouraged everyone to attend 
the Annual Pool Party on August 19th  at EJ Miller 
Park  (Attachment J1). 

 
 
 
 

None. 
 
 

None. 

IX.  ADJOURN  

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 8:04 p.m. 



 

August 22, 2022 Finance Committee  

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday – August 22, 2022,  

7:00 a.m. – Vineyard Conference Room 
AGENDA 

 MEMBERS:          STAFF: 
 Keith Sattler         Craig Marks 
 Neilan McPartland        David Rollins  
 Brandon Bowden        Stephanie Titus 
                   
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
         I.   APPROVE MINUTES 

Action Requested – July 25, 2022, Minutes 

 

       II.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
              A.  Review Financials – July 2022 (Attachment X)                                                            David 
                    Action Requested – July 2022 Financial Statements 
          
              B.  Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal                                    David 
 
   
              C.  Voucher Lists                                                                                                                                                 
                   Action Requested – Voucher List - Payroll and AP Vouchers # 166480 through #167132               David 
                   Dated 07-21-22through 08-17-22 in the amount of $6,446,637.88.   
              
              D.  Capital Equipment Request-Family Birthplace Sofa Sleepers (Attachment P)                                   David 
                     Action Requested- Sofa Sleepers (4) not to exceed $28,303.29. 
 
      
        III.  ADJOURN  

  

 

 

 



 

 

 

            FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  July 25, 2022                                    VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

                    
GUESTS 

• Keith Sattler 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden  
 
 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• David Rollins, CFO-absent 

• Stephanie Titus, Director of Finance Operations 
 
 

  

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 7:07 a.m.  
 
 

 

II.   APPROVE MINUTES  
 

A motion to approve the 
Finance Committee Meeting 
Minutes for June 27, 2022, as 
presented was made by Keith 
Sattler.  The motion was 
seconded by Brandon 
Bowden and approved.   
 

None. 

III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
A. Review Financials –  

June 2022 
             (Attachment O) 

Stephanie reported Net Income of $1,409,214 in June 
and Gross Charges were $22,496,888 which was 16% 
higher than budget for the month and 27% greater 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the June 2022 
Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 

None. 



 

 

              than the prior year.  Net Operating Revenue came in 
at $8,390,823 (7% over budget).   
 
Expenses were $6,854,197 in June and 5% under 
budget driven by salaries lower than budget due to 
vacation impacts and slightly lower supply costs.  
Surgeries were 337 vs 185 budget and ER visits were 
1,419 vs 1,068 budget. 
 
Cash Flow was $825,263 for the month and $385,196 
YTD.  AR stayed at a net 55 days overall. 
 
Continued to discuss and show progress in Revenue 
Cycle to reduce Days in AR > 90 and the continuing 
recent shift from Bad Debt to Charity. 
 

of Commissioners was made 
by Neilan McPartland. The 
motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved.   

      B.  Review Accounts Receivable  
            and Cash Goal  
 

AR stayed at 55 net days overall as Collections were a 
record $7,963,549 but goal still was aggressive at 
$8,710,359.  POS collections were $25,580 exceeding a 
budget of $15,000 and prior year $15,619.  POS 
collections YTD are $211,717 versus $90,000 budget 
and $103,985 prior year. 
 
 

None. None. 

     C.  Voucher Lists  
           Payroll and AP Vouchers 
           #165938 through #166479 
           Dated 06.23.22 through   
           07.20.22 in the amount of  
           $7,222,196.25.  
            
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the June 2022 
Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 
by Keith Sattler. The motion 
was seconded by Neilan 
McPartland and approved. 

None. 



 

 

IV.  ADJOURN       

Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:48 am. 

 



MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

  PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM:   CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO 

DATE:   August 2022 

RE:  CEO REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________  

SERVICES 

1.  Replacement Facility Update 

          For the first time since we began our Replacement Facility Project, specific reports are starting 

to emerge about the increasing costs locally and across the country related to hospital construction 

projects. We recently learned about a project in Iowa that came in 33% over budget (Attachment A). 

Locally, we learned that the Moses Lake (Samaritan Healthcare) replacement hospital project came in 

approximately $31 million (20%) over their budgeted Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP). As a result, 

Boards face tough decisions as to whether to proceed with their projects. It appears that hospitals 

that have the financial means are continuing with their projects (Iowa) and those that do not (Moses 

Lake) are considering other options such as a phased construction approach or pursuing a tax levy to 

help pay the additional cost. It should be noted that Moses Lake is not a Critical Access Hospital 

(CAH), so Medicare and Medicaid will not help them cover the increased costs like they will for our 

project. It does appear; most hospitals are doing everything possible to complete their project sooner 

rather than later as prices are forecast to remain fairly stable and interest rates are projected to 

continue increasing, driving up the cost of construction loans. We continue to pursue our project 

aggressively as reflected in the August Monthly Progress Report from our Owner Representatives- 

NV5 (Attachment B); minutes from our last Project Team Meeting (Attachment C); and the project 

schedule for the next four months (Attachment D). To assist in compartmentalizing the project, we 

will continue to use the following areas: Design; Construction/ Schedule/ Budget; and Financing. 

 

 A. Design 

     At the end of July, our design team (bcDG) completed making value engineering (VE) changes to 

our plans and submitted construction documents to Bouten Construction, which were released with 

each bid package on August 1st. Our design team and NV5 are currently working with several 

regulatory agencies (e.g., Department of Health, City of Prosser, USDA) as they review the documents 

and submit questions/comments to them. One of the challenges we face is that the lead reviewer 

from the DOH for our project resigned. Several additional staff have now been assigned to our 

project, but we do not know what impact this change will have on our project and our schedule. We 

hope to have more information regarding this change and the progress being made with each agency 



at the August Board Work Session. Representatives from bcDG will not be here for the meeting but 

will be available virtually. Our entire project team, including legal counsel, has been working with us 

to reach an agreement with the City of Prosser regarding the needed Mitigated Determination of 

non-significance (MDNS), which is the key to us receiving State Environmental Protection Agency 

(SEPA) approval and our final Certificate of Need (CON). We have reached an agreement 

(Attachment E) which enables us to keep moving forward. This agreement will be discussed at the 

Work Session along with our plan to create a Development Plan with the City to defer Gap Road 

frontage improvements until more is known about future development in the area. The acceptance 

of the MDNS by the City allows us to pursue a building permit for our project (Attachment F) while 

we work on a deferral Development Plan in the coming months. Our final design topic relates to the 

relocation and burying of the Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District (SVID) overflow canal on our 

property. We are currently working with them to minimize the size of the easement they need so as 

not to negatively impact any future development we would like to do on our property. This will also 

be discussed at the August Board Work Session. 

 

B. Construction/Schedule/Budget 

     While we are currently under contract with Bouten Construction to complete all pre-construction 

services including the establishment of a MACC, we are also negotiating with them for construction 

management services (GC/CM). These contracts are called A133 and A201 and are essentially the 

same contracts we had with Graham Construction, except all the pre-construction language is 

removed. While the details are being worked out this week, a draft A133 (Attachment G) and A201 

(Attachment H) will be included in this packet. I have also included what was originally bid by each 

GC/CM including Bouten (Attachment I). These agreements will be discussed at the Board Work 

Session and the Board will be asked to approve them at the August Board Meeting if we complete 

negotiations. If we do not, the Board will be asked to approve them at the September 8th Special 

Board Meeting. It is important to remember that the USDA must also approve these contracts, so we 

want to give them as much time as possible for review. Bouten began the bidding process for our 

project on August 1st with the release of 35 bid packages (Attachment J). The results of this first bid 

package opening on August 23rd will be shared at the Board Work Session and the other bid 

openings will be used to establish a MACC for our project and shared with the Board at the 

September 8th Special Board Meeting. Bouten plans to share a proposal for the Board to consider 

which will establish an Initial MACC for the project, (Attachment JJ) including electrical (Garrett) 

(Attachment K) and mechanical (Apollo) (Attachment L) services. This proposal will be discussed at 

the Board Work Session and the Board will be asked to approve it at the August Board Meeting. The 

rationale for the Initial MACC is that it will save considerable costs (e.g., avoid a prevailing wage 

increase September 1st) and help keep the project on schedule (order mechanical equipment with 

long lead times). At this time, there have not been any schedule changes as outlined in (Attachment 

D). The budget is also unchanged from Bouten’s MACC estimate (Attachment M) and NV5’s total 

project estimate (Attachment N) and will not be modified until we have a MACC/GMP. 

 

 



C. Financing 

     While we wait to learn what the MACC and GMP will be at the end of August, Gary Hicks and the 

PMH team are preparing for ways to obtain additional funds if needed. The most favorable option 

would be to pursue additional funds from the USDA. Based on our current financial performance and 

the completion of a revised feasibility study by DZA, we anticipate having the financial strength to 

approach the USDA one more time for additional funds if the Board agrees. A draft resolution 

(Attachment O) is included in the packet as a model for a document that the Board may be asked to 

approve on September 8th. In addition, we continue to consider the use of equipment leases, PMH 

equity (cash), capital equipment expenditure reductions, etc. as ways to fund any unfunded portions 

of the project. We are especially concerned about the rising interest rates, which will significantly 

impact our construction loan. Gary Hicks will present his current ideas at the August Board Work 

Session and will develop a total financing plan for the Board to approve on September 8th. 

Everything hinges on our bid results, which we are all anxiously awaiting. 

 

 

2. Capital Expenditure 

     Sometimes, despite our best efforts to plan, the plans do not workout. That is the case with our 

sofa sleepers (4) in our Family Birthplace LDRPs. We had hoped that our current sofas would last until 

we opened our new hospital. Unfortunately, however, the sofas are worn out and in despair. 

Fortunately, when we recently visited Chicago, we trialed many sofa sleepers for the new hospital 

and selected the Wieland; (Attachment P). After our visit, the Family Birthplace received a demo and 

has been trialing it for several months. Due to the cost to repair and maintain our current sofas, we 

are recommending that they be replaced now (at a cost not to exceed $28,303.29 and brought with 

us to the new hospital. This same sofa sleeper is also planned to be used throughout the new hospital 

which will allow us to fully test it before purchasing 20+ more. This proposed purchase will be 

discussed at the Board Work Session and the Board will be asked to approve it at the August Board 

Meeting. 

        

 

3. Community Support 

     One thing that has not and will not change, regardless of the challenges we face, is our support of 

our greater community. We have also been blessed with a community that returns that support! An 

example of this was our recent sponsorship of a community 3 on 3 basketball tournament. Our 

support of our youth has, and will, continue to be strong. This past week we sponsored the Yakima 

Valley Fair and Youth Livestock Auction in Grandview. In addition to sponsoring the event, we also 

purchased a goat, steer, and two lambs to demonstrate our support of our youth learning about 

business, accountability, and hard work through raising an animal and selling it at an auction. 

Congratulations to all the area youth that participated in the event! We also like to support other local 



agencies that support our youth and community. To that end, Dr. Brian Sollers and I agreed to 

participate in the Boys and Girls Club Dunk Challenge. This contest helps raise needed funds for the 

Club and enables the winner to dunk one of the other contestants. At the time of my writing this, I am 

near the top of funds raised, but I could use more support. If I win, several individuals including Dr 

Sollers’ children, have informed me that Dr. Sollers needs a good rinsing! This is how we care! 

 

4. Laundry Update 

         In May, we announced that we were planning to outsource our laundry to Oregon Correctional 

Enterprise (OCE) for all PMH laundry. OCE is utilized by the three Tri-City and Walla Walla hospitals 

with excellent results. OCE will pick-up PMH laundry five times per week, take it to their facility where 

it will be cleaned, folded, sorted and packaged into bins and returned to PMH within 48 hours. This 

change will officially begin on Monday, August 22nd. Our current laundry staff are being integrated 

into hospital environmental services functions, with no loss of hours or pay. While most hospitals 

made this type of change years ago, it is never easy. More importantly, I want to thank our dedicated, 

hardworking laundry staff, Deanna Bridger and Angelita Rojas-Gonzalez, who have supported us 

without fail throughout the years. Thank you and we look forward to continuing to work with you in 

your new roles! 

 

 

 

Medical Staff Development 

1. Radiologist Services 

     For the past 3+ years Dr. Jeffrey Zuckerman and his colleague Dr. Thomas Ballard have provided 

radiologist services at PMH. Unfortunately, Dr Zuckerman recently gave us his six-month notice and a 

plan to relocate to Puerto Rico (Attachment Q). Dr. Zuckerman has greatly expanded the radiology 

services in a high-quality fashion at PMH. Please join me in wishing him the best in his new adventure! 

As a result, we began recruiting efforts immediately on our own and have also contracted with Merritt 

Hawkins (a national recruitment firm) to assist us. We currently have several candidates that we 

identified and are conducting preliminary interviews with them. We expect to receive candidates from 

Merritt Hawkins in the coming weeks. We are also talking to Dr. Ballard about his future plans and 

how they might help support our needs at PMH. Six months is a very short time frame, so we are 

aggressively attacking this challenge. 

 

 

 

 



2. Medical Staff Recruitment 

        With the announcement from Dr. Zuckerman, the recruitment of a radiologist became our number 

one priority. Nationally, there is a shortage of radiologists, especially ones that read all radiology 

modalities (e.g., CT, mammography, nuclear medicine, MRI, etc.) and perform some invasive 

procedures (e.g., biopsies) like Dr. Zuckerman does. It is anticipated that it will take at least 4- 6 

months, or even longer, to have someone here working. As a result, Aurora Weddle and Merry Fuller 

are working on contingency plans if it takes longer. In the meantime, we continue to recruit for 

orthopedic surgery, physiatry, emergency medicine, endocrinology, and gastroenterology. We are 

currently interviewing candidates in all of these specialties, with the exception of endocrinology where 

there are very few candidates. In addition to phone interviews, we are also hosting the best 

candidates for site visits and have several scheduled in the coming weeks. As a result of our continued 

growth throughout PMH, we recently hired several Advanced Practice Clinicians (APCs) to work in our 

Emergency Department and we are currently recruiting APCs for gastroenterology and dermatology. 

One last note, we are also assisting Horse Heaven Anesthesia in their recruitment of a fifth CRNA as 

surgical volumes continue to increase. 

 

 

3.  Medical Staff Activity 

     The Medical Staff continued to be active during the second quarter of 2022 dealing with typical 

Medical Staff activities (e.g., quality review, review and approval of policies), while also dealing with the 

largest volumes PMH has ever experienced (Attachment R). One of the major reasons for this is the 

growth of our Medical Staff in numbers and by specialty. This growth impacts all Medical Staff 

committees and is being handled well by the entire team. Our Medical Staff continues to support our 

Mission, Vision and Values and is leading us to a place we have never been before. 

 

   

 

 

4. Sollus Northwest Family Medicine Residency Program 

         We were recently notified by Dr. Katherine Norris, Residency Program Director, that Dr. H. Benno 

Marx will no longer serve as part of the core faculty for their Residency Program (Attachment S) Dr. 

Marx has served the students and residents in this area for many years and I would like to wish him 

well as he eases into retirement. As we grow, the Residency Program plans to take advantage of our 

outstanding physicians and expand into radiology, cardiology, gastroenterology, and dermatology in 

the near future. This Residency Program is a major supplier of physicians for rural communities all 

across the country, including the Yakima Valley, and is one we will continue to support. 

    

 



Employee Development 

1. Employee Engagement 

     For the first time in three years, we are busy preparing for our Annual Employee Pool Party on 

August 19th (Attachment T). This is an opportunity for our team to bring their families to an end of 

summer celebration. The event includes barbecue (hot dogs) dinner with all the fixings, games for 

everyone, and access to the Prosser Swimming Pool from 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. The forecast is for a 

beautiful evening and over 450 team members and their families are planning to attend. 

Outstanding! I look forward to seeing you all Friday! The employee newsletter, The Pulse, highlights 

some of the activities and recognitions that were held throughout the past month including the LDI, 

Summer Social, ASPIRE awards, and new employee orientation (Attachment U). 

 

2. Bucket list 

     With the assistance of the PMH team, I recently celebrated a significant (?) Birthday. One of the 

suggestions by a staff member (Merry Fuller) was to have staff submit items I should complete before 

I kick-the-bucket. I received 103 suggestions (Attachment V), with various levels of urgency. I did 

learn that many staff want me to die sooner rather than later (e.g., skydive, swim with sharks). Many 

of the suggestions were great and I look forward to doing them. One of them that caught my eye was 

the idea to replace my current mask, which is old (6+ months) and a little worn. I have not replaced it 

as my own little protest against the Chinese government and my desire not to give them any more 

money. I do, however, understand the need to replace the mask (even though I have not gotten 

COVID-19 or even a cold) and have challenged our team to raise $500, which I will personally match, 

to burn the mask and replace it with a new one (Attachment W). All funds raised will be donated to 

the PMH Foundation for our new hospital. We currently have raised $550, and I look forward to 

writing a $550 check to the PMH Foundation! 

 

 

Financial Stewardship 

1. Financial Performance- July 

    In most hospitals I have worked, the patient volumes and financial performance declined in the 

summer months. That is certainly not the case at PMH as we continue to have strong volumes, 

revenue, and financial performance (Attachment X). Our gross revenue in July was 15% better than 

budget and 21% better than last July. Unfortunately, most of the positive budget variance was eaten 

up by deductions and contractual allowances. With the addition of $107,208 of COVID-19 Relief 

Funds, our net revenue for July was $10,479 better than budget. With the recognition of these 

COVID-19 Relief Funds, we now have $38,580 remaining in the fund (Attachment Y), which will be 

used next month. In total, we will have recognized approximately $1.8 million of COVID-19 Relief 

Funds in 2022. July was a good month for expenses as we were $59,760 (1%) better than budget 

despite our high volumes. After accounting for non-operating revenue, our net income for July was 

$533,224 or 20% better than budget.  



     As we continue to have strong financial months, our year-to-date performance continues to be 

strong. Our gross and net revenue are better than budget and our expenses are under budget. As a 

result, our year-to-date net income is $5,672,321, which is 69% better than our budget. Also on a 

positive note, we experienced $311,339 of positive cash flow in July, and year-to-date have a positive 

cash flow of $696,535. Our operating margin (11.3%) and total margin (10.8%) are also significantly 

better than our Pillar Goal of 6%. While we are performing very well financially, hospitals across the 

country continue to struggle. For example, Providence Health announced today that their 52 

hospitals have lost $934 million in the first six months of 2022. Our strong financial performance and 

balance sheet sets us apart from many hospitals and will hopefully be reviewed favorably by the 

USDA if we pursue additional funding from them. 

  

2. PMH Foundation Update 

         The 2nd Annual Wine Country Classic Golf Tournament will be held Friday, September 9 at Canyon 

Lakes Golf Course. Check-in begins at 7 am, play begins at 8 am. We have 32 teams signed up and 

$36,550 in sponsorships to date. We can have a total of 36 teams total. We will have great contests 

and prizes to give out with an all-you-can-eat taco bar for lunch to cap things off! 

     Capital Campaign Update: A letter from Shannon Hitchcock was sent to all donors, prospective 

donors, and community partners regarding the progress on the New Hospital project as we 

understood there was misinformation in the community about the project. We will have another 

update after the special Board of Commissioners meeting on September 8. It is our hope to break 

ground this fall and launch the public fundraising phase of the capital campaign. As you know, 

demonstrating internal support for the project is also important for the USDA. To date we have 

support from the following internal stakeholder groups: 

• Leadership Team: 100% 

• Board of Commissioners: 75% 

• Foundation Board Members (who are not also Commissioners): 36% 

• Staff: 26%  

• Medical Staff: 15%  
 

We have sold $4,500 in bricks toward the capital campaign as well. We will advertise this to the public 

once we break ground as well. 

 

 

 

 

 



 
   QUALITY 

 
1. Legal Manual 

      
     In the 2022 Board Action Plan, the Board indicated that they would like to learn more about their 
legal responsibilities, conflicts of interest, and the potential liabilities of governance. To assist in this 
education process, I have obtained a recently updated Legal Manual for Washington Public Hospital 
Districts from Matt Ellsworth at the Association of Washington Public Hospital Districts (Attachment 
Z). This manual is very comprehensive and should answer many questions Board members have. I 
also spoke to Matt about getting an attorney or other expert in this area to speak to our Board. I will 
seek feedback from our Board regarding the manual and whether it was helpful before I arrange a 
speaker. As a side note, while there are thousands of rules/laws we must follow, PMH is doing a good 
job of adhering to them.      
 
 
 

 
5. August Board Meetings 
      

          The August Board Work Session will primarily be used to discuss the different aspects of our 

Replacement Facility Project including: MDNS/ SEPA; SVID; regulatory reviews; bid process update; 

GC/CM contract; electrical and mechanical mini-MACCs; schedule budget; and financing. We will also 

be prepared to discuss the proposed acquisition of four sofa sleepers for the Family Birthplace. At the 

August Board Meeting the Board will be asked to approve: the purchase of the four proposed sofa 

sleepers; GC/CM contracts with Bouten Construction; an electrical Mini MACC with Garrett Electric; 

and a mechanical Mini MACC with Apollo Heating and Air Conditioning. 

          

 

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other hospital activities, please contact me at 

(269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the hospital.                                                                              



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment A



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment B















Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 1 of 11 

Meeting # 20220819 Date: 
Meeting: Friday, August 19, 2022 

Issued: Friday, August 19, 2022 

Time & Location:  
9:00amCT/8:00amMT/7:00amPT 

MS Teams Video Call 
Prepared by: Adam Trumbour – NV5 

Attendees:  

✓ = Attended Meeting 

 

PMH  

Craig Marks ✓ David Rollins ✓ Merry Fuller ✓ Phillip Braem 

Bryon Dirkes Rey Rodriguez ✓ Dr. Brian Sollers 

 

NV5  BCDG Finance Consult. Bouten 

Paul Kramer ✓ Kurt Broeckelmann ✓ Gary Hicks ✓ Brandon Potts ✓ 

Adam Trumbour ✓ Brooke Cinalli  Mac McGrath ✓ 

Braden Demmerly ✓ Hilary Beashore ✓  Sean Gossett ✓ 

 Lance White  Nick Gonzales 

 Attendees 

PMN = Post Meeting Note            For minutes from prior weeks, please reference previously issued minutes. 

 

No Item 

 

Date Due By Ball in Court 

1.  GENERAL / ADMINISTRATION   

1.1.  Project Goals, Objectives, & Strategies 

24Jun22 – Adam to send to Hilary; may resolve on site. 

IN PROGRESS Team 

1.2.  5Mar21 – Graham Team CLOSED  

1.3.  5Mar21 – NV5 Transition CLOSED  

1.4.  Contracting Realignment 

17Jun22 – NV5 received comments from Bouten. Both parties are 

working to reach an agreement. PMH would like a completed 

contract to recommend to the board at the June work session, for 

approval at the June 30 board meeting. 

24Jun22 – The Bouten preconstruction agreement is fully executed. 

A201 comments sent to PK on 6/23; PK responded to A133 

comments responded this morning. PK and Bouten to agree on 

approach to deliver contract for board work session, including 

resolving all comments. 

8Jul22 – NV5 to meet with Bouten on contract adjustments/review 

needed on A201. 

22Jul22 – Team hopes to present contract for board approval and 

execution in August. 

28Jul22 – A133 and A201 need to be finalized ASAP for USDA 

review. A133 is close to completion, A201 needs review by Bouten. 

Bouten history is that USDA signs the contract with everyone in the 

room (ie signing party). 

12Aug22 – Adam to check with PC on this. Ideally these are ready 

for the August work session since we need them ready ahead of the 

September 8 special meeting. 

19Aug22 – In Bouten’s court for review as of 8/17/2022. Brandon 

is hoping to review by Monday. 

IN PROGRESS  

2.  SCHEDULE   

2.1.  4 Month Look-Ahead Schedule INFO  

Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment C



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 2 of 11 

2.2.  In-Person Meetings 

As noted at the end of meeting minutes. 

28Jul22 – Next in-person meeting will be August 23 for work session 

and bid openings on 8/23 and 8/25. Also bid opening on 8/30. 

5Aug22 – PMH prefers that we review the additional financing 

needs with the board at the August board session. Likewise, with 

MDNS: inform board about forthcoming Development Agreement. 

INFO  

2.3.  Overall Project Schedule 

13May22 – NV5 to prepare revised project schedule for 

presentation to the Board, for team review on 5/20/22. What 

makes sense for a construction start date, to avoid winter weather 

costs (e.g. temporary heat)? Team to review with forthcoming 

replacement general contractor. ICE may hold up CoN issuance, 

which may hold up building permit issuance, which could push 

construction start to the fall.  

20May22 – NV5 to provide two schedule possibilities: proceeding 

with a GCCM, or re-bidding as a stipulated sum project. 

PMN: schedule will be updated subsequent to negotiations. 

5Aug22 – NV5 is working on a new master schedule, which 

combines the GCCM realignment schedule and the previous master 

project schedule. 

IN PROGRESS NV5 

3.  BUDGET   

3.1.  Budget Development INFO  

3.2.  Medical Equipment (Major and Minor) (moved to item 4.12) INFO  

3.3.  DZA Feasibility Study 

8Jul22 – Updated feasibility study to be completed by 9/6. 

19Aug22 – DZA needs the final MACC in order to finalize the study. 

9/6/22 DZA, GLH, PMH 

3.4.  Financing 

6May22 – Gary will continue working with PMH to identify financing 

options, however, final financing should not occur until the firm, 

fixed price construction cost is identified. 

20May22 – Team is still working on the letter of conditions for 

USDA. 

3Jun22 – USDA wants the Attorney’s Opinion of RoW prior to 

proceeding. Need the easements to be recorded prior to this 

happening. Water and sewer easement should be on the June 7 

council meeting agenda for signature. Team aims to finalize these by 

June 10. 

17Jun22 – Gary feels USDA will need minimum 2-4 weeks for 

additional financing approval, with an additional 2-4 weeks for DZA 

to update the feasibility study (total of 4-6 weeks). 

24Jun22 – Gary and David are working on additional funding. 

8Jul22 – Gary to follow up with USDA re additional funding. 

22Jul22 – Gary to review USDA communications with Craig and 

David. Bouten is working to steer communications regarding 

subcontracting community and availability of funds for this project to 

ensure they understand the project is funded. 

12Aug22 – Lease financing conversations continue; lease financing 

RFP should be issued the week of 8/15/2022. Gary intends to 

submit a revised funding request to USDA the same week. A formal 

application to USDA will be submitted on 9/9, subsequent to Board 

approval of the proposed MACC on 9/8. 

19Aug22 – Gary is working through additional financing. 

IN PROGRESS  



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 3 of 11 

4.  PROCUREMENT / OWNER-LED ACTIVITIES   

4.1.  GC/CM RFP CLOSED  

4.2.  Furniture & Demonstration Furniture 

13May22 – OS to prepare final package for next week. OS is also 

researching the most reasonable procurement timeline (buy 

furniture upon construction commencement and pay for 

warehousing vs. risk of inflation year-to-year when purchasing later 

in the project timeline). Merry and Brian to discuss method for 

collecting information and feedback on additional demo furniture. 

Craig requests that Brian be the lead on feedback. Best approach 

would be a Furniture Fair Friday in a conference room to engage 

staff. NV5 to facilitate this. 

3Jun22 – OpenSquare will present their furniture proposal to the 

team; need to determine a day/time. Need to include PMH Admin 

team—30 minutes during Thursday at 2PM – 4PM PT is preferable. 

PMN: Canceled. NV5 to reschedule with PMH and OpenSquare. 

17Jun22 – PMH to provide an alternative meeting date/time. 

24Jun22 – June 21 does not work for OpenSquare, try 7/28. 

8Jul22 – Meeting scheduled for 7/28. 

29Jul22 – OpenSquare presented their current furniture proposal to 

the team on July 28. NV5 to work with OpenSquare to plan a 

furniture fair with OpenSquare sometime before October. 

19Aug22 – OpenSquare is working on this. NV5 will coordinate the 

dates in October via email. 

INFO NV5, 

OpenSquare 

4.3.  Site Clearing CLOSED  

4.4.  Geotechnical Engineer CLOSED  

4.5.  Commissioning Agent CLOSED  

4.6.  Security Design Consultant CLOSED  

4.7.  New Facility Operational Meetings 

04Mar22 – Team to commence meetings within the coming 

months. 

INFO NV5, Merry 

4.8.  bcDG Contract CLOSED  

4.9.  Landscape Consultant 

11Mar22 – The Foundation would like to incorporate a donor 

patio/bricks, etc., and would like to know when the landscape 

contractor will be engaged. As of now, plan is to contract with them 

during April MACC process. Team to involve the Foundation 

thereafter. 

22Apr22 – Graham received one bid for this work. (PMN) Graham 

indicates the bid was not compliant and therefore they did not 

accept it. 

6May22 – Close out pending new contractor. 

13May22 – PMH requests wildflower planting on fallow parts of the 

property, as part of the final site landscaping. 

17Jun22 – Adam to send plan to Bouten. PMH needs a reasonably 

landscaped site but understands there might be potential to 

continue to enhance the landscaping once construction is complete. 

5Aug22 – Bouten spoke with prospective landscaping, who 

recommended that any seeded areas also be irrigated. This is best 

addressed by the landscape design-build team once they are 

onboard as a subcontractor, though. 

INFO  



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 4 of 11 

4.10.  Telecommunications Provider 

6May22 – PMH working on existing facility contract. USAC funding 

cannot apply until a facility is constructed, so PMH will proceed 

without USAC financing. 

INFO  

4.11.  Flooding from Neighbor CLOSED NV5 

4.12.  Medical Equipment (Major and Minor) 

14Jan22 – We need to competitively bid all new equipment 

(lights/booms (Stryker), imaging). Note: lights from current ORs will 

be moved to new Procedure Rooms, for example. RBA advises 

against bidding the Steris system and Pyxis system. Need to provide 

specific dates for “required on site” for all equipment. 

04Mar22 – NV5 to check in with RBA for next steps. 

11Mar22 – NV5 is conducting a meeting with RBA on 3/17. 

18Mar22 – Meeting was moved to 3/18. 

8Apr22 – Next steps occur after MACC is approved. 

6May22 – Adam to check with RBA on updated budget pricing. PMH 

may increase leased equipment by an additional $1.4MM. 

13May22 – RBA will revisit their cost estimate and send to team for 

review. They will also review lease options to capture the additional 

$1.4MM in leasing PMH would like to pursue. 

20May22 – NV5 to check on RBA progress. 

3Jun22 – R&B sent a list of proposed leased equipment. NV5 to 

send to Steve, Dave, Merry, Craig. PMH is also working on reusing 

more imaging equipment vs. buying or leasing new. 

17Jun22 – Adam to send to Gary. PMH team to review internally and 

determine which items are appropriate. NV5 to add this review to 

the on-site agenda for board week. 

24Jun22 – NV5 to review lease list from David. 

22Jul22 – RBA stresses the importance of executing procurement 

contracts this year to avoid unpredictable price increases. 

  

4.13.  Food Service Equipment 

29Jul22 – NV5 will procure a FSE vendor once NTP date is set. 

5Aug22 – Team reviewed FSE plans with Morrison, who provided 

minor comments. 

  

5.  DESIGN / PERMITTING   

5.1.  Annexation & Zoning CLOSED  



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 5 of 11 

5.2.  Certificate of Need  

PMN: SEPA comment period begins Wednesday, February 23. There 

will be a 30-day comment period. Once all of the agencies have 

submitted their comments, Steve will route them to PMH so that 

they can respond. Then Steve will issue a determination, likely an 

MDNS. The building plans are currently being reviewed which will 

save a lot of time. A building permit can be issued after a 

determination has been issued AND the water and sewer have been 

connected. 

11Mar22 – NV5 to add quarterly milestones for CoN reporting 

requirements. 

18Mar22 – Master schedule now includes CoN reporting 

milestones.  

6May22 – CoN will be issued once SEPA/MDNS is resolved. Adam to 

forward Perkins Coie comments to Craig re MDNS. 

13May22 – NV5 to ask PC to draft a letter with their comments. 

20May22 – bcDG is at work with Transpo Group and will meet today 

(May 20) to commence the study and expectations with WSDOT. 

3Jun22 – ICE is in progress, likely complete for WSDOT review end 

of June or beginning of July. NV5 sent the city a letter response to 

the draft MDNS on June 2. 

17Jun22 – Transpo group will have draft ready next week for team. 

24Jun22 – See comments 5.13, below. 

8Jul22 – NV5 to schedule follow up SEPA meeting with City of 

Prosser to continue discussion of road compromise (bcDG and ECE 

working on drawings for meeting). 

22Jul22 – NV5 will send draft MDNS comments to City today. 

29Jul22 – Team met internally on 7/28 to finalize MDNS. Perkins 

Coie sent suggested verbiage for incorporation. NV5 to send back to 

the City today. 

12Aug22 – Adam to check with the City and Health Facilities re 

when will we get CoN approval, now that MDNS is finalized. 

19Aug22 – Health Facilities will appeal to the DoH for the CoN once 

they have documentation of an approved SEPA. NV5 to follow up 

with the City and ECE to understand when we might expect an 

approved SEPA. 

IN PROGRESS NV5, ECE, HFI 

5.3.  Water & Sewer (City) 

22Jul22 – Project is complete. Bouten will call in for Water and 

Sewer laterals once building construction commences. 

CLOSED  

5.4.  City Permit Review 

12Aug22 – NV5 to check with Nick re building permit status now 

that MDNS is finalized. 

PMN: Nick is waiting for an “all clear” from the DoH before issuing a 

building permit. He will contact them ASAP to check on this. He also 

indicated that a foundation-only permit could be issued ahead of 

this, though we will need to check with USDA that they will allow us 

to break ground without a full-fledged building permit. 

IN PROGRESS NV5, PMH 



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 6 of 11 

5.5.  State Permit Review 

14Jan22 – Need to meet with DoH on requirements for the move 

process—transitioning from one building to another in compliance 

with the CoN. DoH indicates sitework may proceed ahead of formal 

DoH approval. 

11Mar22 – DoH appears to be currently reviewing the project. We 

could expect comments back in the next few weeks. 

18Mar22 – bcDG will submit to L&I this week. 

8Apr22 – DoH has a handful of comments that must be addressed 

ahead of construction, but the remainder may be addressed 

concurrent with construction. WA DOE returned comments 

concerning the site (wetlands and stormwater discharge); Civil is 

reviewing. 

15Apr22 – Merry to attend DoH call on Tuesday. 

22Apr22 – DoH call went well. bcDG is working to resolve the 

“critical” comments needed for a building permit. The majority of 

comments may be resolved during construction. bcDG aims to issue 

revised drawings and a response letter in two weeks’ time. 

6May22 – Design team was paused on comment response, but will 

reconvene on the comment review and provide a response to the 

AHJs this month (May). 

13May22 – Team is working on responses this month. 

20May22 – The design team intends to issue drawings associated 

with the comment responses. The comment responses should be 

ready within ~2 weeks, drawings will be forthcoming thereafter. The 

DoH comments are the most substantial and the team intends to 

respond to those in June(?). bcDG to meet with team to finalize 

timing on this. 

24Jun22 – NV5 to facilitate answering comments that are identified 

in the spreadsheet as needing PMH or NV5 guidance. 

8Jul22 – Team permit review comment meeting scheduled for July 

11. 

29Jul22 – Matt, our primary contract at DoH, is leaving the DoH. 

5Aug22 – Lance to reach out to Ander, John and Noam at DoH to 

understand who will be the point of contact following Matthew’s 

departure. 

12Aug22 – Lance spoke with Kevin Scarlett, who will be our point of 

contact within the DoH. Team should have a meeting planned 

moving forward. 

19Aug22 – bcDG will talk to Kevin and communicate what Matthew 

set for expectations re building permit. 

IN PROGRESS bcDG, DoH, 

PMH 

5.6.  Electric Service CLOSED  

5.7.  Program Review CLOSED  

5.8.  Nurse Server Mockup CLOSED  

5.9.  NV5 DD Review CLOSED  



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 7 of 11 

5.10.  Design Progress Update  

6May22 – Team to address any design changes once the VE details 

are received from Graham. 

13May22 – Graham will send VE log by next week. 

20May22 – Team to review what Graham sent. 

3Jun22 – bcDG is working on renderings of the revised roof options, 

for PMH to review the week of June 6. Once the roof line is approved 

by PMH, bcDG will determine what their remaining design schedule 

looks like. PMH needs drawings completed by July so that the GC 

can provide a GMP by mid-August. 

17Jun22 – bcDG is working with subconsultants to establish a 

shorter schedule. What could be very critical is the Buy America(n) 

requirement. Design team will need additional time to revise their 

bid documents so that it is based on Buy America(n). See item 5.16 

below in these meeting minutes. 

24Jun22 – We may not need a shorter design schedule if PMH 

obtains additional funding outside of USDA. bcDG working on 

incorporating major design changes and permit-related items. 

22Jul22 – Need to meet to review quantity and locations of WOWs. 

Craig believes there should be few or none. NV5 to check with Merry 

and Phillip on this first. bcDG will issue CDs on July 29, 2022. 

28Jul22 – bcDG is finalizing bid docs for issuance to Bouten today 

(7/28). bcDG and Bouten to meet next week and develop front-end 

specification sections. 

5Aug22 – Team intends to finalize the front-end specs the week of 

8/8/2022. 

12Aug22 – bcDG is working with Bouten on this. The last addendum 

is Friday, August 19. The front-end specs need to be completed 

before then, with time for Bouten to review and suggest edits if 

needed. bcDG to verify that all constructability comments were 

incorporated into the latest drawings, which will be issued as a bid 

addendum today. 

19Aug22 – bcDG will need to revise the drawings to address USDA 

comments. TBD if this is issued as an addendum or conformed. 

IN PROGRESS bcDG, Graham 



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 8 of 11 

5.11.  SVID coordination 

11Feb22 – NV5 to request SVID to complete all work, lateral and 

culverts included. 

11Mar22 – Design for using irrigation water? Hilary to ask ECE. 

PMN: ECE can’t provide this service. Graham will investigate working 

with the landscape contractor to provide this. 

18Mar22 – SVID proposes to bury the ditch on PMH property as 

their preferred option. If SVID is going to underground the entire 

ditch, which is not PMH’s preference, then PMH will not contribute to 

costs to underground the ditch. 

8Apr22 – PMH wants at least a letter from PC to SVID. If the pipe is 

buried, can it be placed at perimeter and not through the middle of 

the site? 

22Apr22 – Given the cost is less than installing concrete culverts, 

we should proceed with undergrounding; is along the perimeter 

better than diagonally through site? NV5 to work with SVID on this 

and the location of manholes. 

6May22 – Adam to send Craig cost info and timing. 

13May22 – SVID would charge an additional $30k for a perimeter 

routing. Team is leaning toward this option, as it clears the center of 

the site. NV5 to work with ECE and SVID on what this will entail 

(easement, especially). 

3Jun22 – NV5 to maintain progress with SVID on rerouting. bcDG is 

working with ECE to address the neighboring subdivision’s request 

to tap into the SVID overflow. NV5 to respond to the neighbor to let 

them know that we are likely rerouting the overflow. 

22Jul22 – NV5 to check with SVID today on pricing. NV5 to forward 

update to PMH prior to board meeting. 

29Jul22 – Relocated drainage route needs to be staked/surveyed in 

order to layout a new easement. NV5 coordinating surveying etc. 

SVID has notice to proceed for driveway work but needs to finalize 

the aforementioned reroute before scheduling the work. NV5 to 

double-check on putting overflow in same easement as supply. NV5 

to ask why they need 30' (any legal reasons?). 

12Aug22 – NV5 continues to contact the surveyor in an attempt to 

have the utilities staked per SVID’s request. SVID indicated that the 

USBR will need to approved the ditch relocation, so NV5 is 

determining what that process entails and any schedule risks. The 

ditch may need to remain in its current location if the USBR process 

appears to be too lengthy. 

19Aug22 – NV5 continues to work with SVID and USBR to reroute 

the overflow channel. This includes negotiating the easement 

locations and widths. 

IN PROGRESS NV5 

5.12.  PAR Process CLOSED  

5.13.  Traffic Study 

5Aug22 – Will the final approval of the ICE push out the SEPA and 

building permit issuance dates? What is the anticipated duration of 

the ICE final approval by WSDOT? 

12Aug22 – Per Steve Zetz email on 8/8, the MDNS incorporates the 

ICE as conditions for a Certificate of Occupancy, so we should not be 

held up on a building permit by the ICE. 

IN PROGRESS ECE/bcDG 

5.14.  Helipad CLOSED  

5.15.  Pneumatic Tube System CLOSED  



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 9 of 11 

5.16.  USDA Review 

15Apr22 – USDA indicated that they recommended approval 

internally, but that they have not received final concurrence from 

their team. Adam to follow up with USDA on Monday, April 18. 

22Apr22 – USDA sent their concurrence on the GC contract on April 

21. NV5 sent email to USDA on 4/22 inquiring as to status of the 

Architect’s contract. 

6May22 – USDA sent their concurrence on the Architect’s contract 

on May 4, 2022. 

13May22 – NV5 to check on USDA review of drawings. 

20May22 – USDA sent a summary of their status via email. They 

indicated they need the following prior to concurrence for 

construction: I show the following is needed prior to 

construction/bid: 

• Evidence of the BofA equipment lease $3.6MM secured 

• Evidence of Applicant contribution $17,300,000 deposited 

in the construction account.  ($2.6 of the funds will be 

identified in the Out Lay Report as interim financing)  

• Submittal of evidence of required permits. 

• Approval by USDA of plans and drawings 100% 

• R-O-W documents need updated and submitted after 

permits are received.    

• Project Manager Resume (already submitted) 

• RFQ, RFQ short list, request for proposal, recommendation 

of Award, Executed Contract 

• Final Plans and specification for the project.  

• AIA contracts: USDA to complete review and approval of 

new contractor  

• Civil Rights Compliance Review and Limited English 

Proficiency review.  

• Non-Discrimination statement to be added as outlined in 

the Letter of Conditions 

• Posters to be posted and pictures submitted to USDA for 

concurrence 

• Certificate of Need to be submitted to USDA 

17Jun22 – Gary understands we may need to convert to “Buy/Build 

America Act” (BABA) should we appeal to USDA for additional 

funding. As of now, this is not part of the design docs/specs, and 

converting to the Act would incur additional time and cost. Gary to 

check with USDA to understand the risk of this applying to our 

project. 

29Jul22 – USDA has not indicated this is a requirement and has not 

answered this question directly. Other precedents indicate we are 

not bound to this, so we are proceeding as-is without BABA 

requirements. 

12Aug22 – USDA sent comments to the team concerning contracts 

and design. The team is currently reviewing them, but they appear to 

be mostly clarifications; there did not seem to be comments 

mandating additions or deletions of scope. 

19Aug22 – bcDG intends to respond to USDA comments the week 

of 8/29 

IN PROGRESS NV5 



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 10 of 11 

5.17.  Bulk Oxygen System 

6May22 – Adam to forward drawings as noted above. 

20May22 – Oxygen farm is not likely to change due to VE. 

17Jun22 – NV5 to facilitate meeting with Oxarc and design team. 

22Jul22 – Hyperbaric is still in flux and would change system, so 

NV5 to request pricing from Oxarc once hyperbaric is resolved. 

INFO  

5.18.  New Address CLOSED  

5.19.  Lot Consolidation of Site 

29Jul22 – NV5 will check on final parcel number next month. 

19Aug22 – The City sent the final parcel number. 

CLOSED  

5.20.  Benton County Noxious Weed Mitigation CLOSED  

5.21.  Stormwater Permit (SWPPP) 

29Jul22 – NV5 working with ECE on this. A newspaper ad was 

placed and now we are in the 30-day comment period before 

applying. We need SEPA approval date in order to apply. 

12Aug22 – Adam to check on SEPA approval in order to proceed 

with SWPPP. 

19Aug22 – SWPPP application is ready and needs to be signed by 

Bouten. NV5 to share all supporting info on SWPPP for Bouten to 

sign. 

IN PROGRESS bcDG, ECE, NV5 

6.  PRE-CONSTRUCTION   

6.1.  Value Engineering (VE) Process 

22Jul22 –Bouten presented lighting VE options; HEI is reviewing to 

ensure equivalency and will provide a recommendation to PMH by 

7/25 ahead of final docs being issued next week. 

29Jul22 – Bouten team working on proposed bid alternates.  

5Aug22 – Bouten will issue alternates to bidders today. 

12Aug22 – bcDG and Bouten need to clean up the lighting package 

to verify which items were approved or rejected and finalize what the 

most economical lighting package will be. 

IN PROGRESS bcDG, Bouten 

6.2.  ECCM/MCCM Procurement 

22Jul22 – Bouten presented an analysis for decisions on path 

forward (ECCM/MCCM or hard-bid). The team agreed it was in the 

best interest of the project to proceed with ECCM and MCCM. 

Bouten will need to execute ECCM/MCCM agreements before 

8/31/22 to avoid ~$450k in labor rate and equipment increases. 

29Jul22 – According to the Dept of Labor & Industries, we need to 

execute an agreement before 8/31/22 in order to utilize the existing 

labor rates ahead of the increase on 9/1/22. Team plans to present 

the mini-MACC at the August board work session for board approval. 

Bouten to present cost risks of *not* signing a mini-MACC before 

8/31. Bouten to also determine if we still have the opportunity to 

sign a min-MACC at this point. 

5Aug22 – Bouten still working on this and will have cost 

commitment ready as well as savings for proceeding in this manner. 

12Aug22 – Bouten may draft a mini-MACC for ECCM and MCCM for 

approval at August board meeting, to take advantage of current 

labor rates (~$500k savings). The commitment/termination cost 

would be ~$20k in the event that PMH cannot proceed with the 

project. Bouten to present these details at the August work session. 

19Aug22 – Bouten issued an initial MACC for review on 8/18/22. 

NV5 and PMH will discuss the best way to proceed with this. 

IN PROGRESS  

6.3.  Preconstruction Contract Amendment CLOSED  

6.4.  CM Estimating CLOSED  



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

Owner Team Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 11 of 11 

6.5.  Early Procurement 

22Jul22 – Bouten will likely need to commit to early procurement of 

long-lead equipment (e.g. Air Handling Units) early in the project. The 

team will work together to facilitate this as appropriate. 

12Aug22 – See note 6.2 above re mini-MACCs. Once the EC/MCCM 

are onboard, they will initiate shop drawing processes for long-lead 

items e.g., air handlers. 

IN PROGRESS  

6.6.  MACC prep 

24Jun22 – Bouten will issue an advertisement for trade outreach. 

8Jul22 – Bouten current working on trade outreach/coming soon 

announcement. 

29Jul22 – Bid openings will occur at NV5 Richland office. 

12Aug22 – Bouten hosted a pre-bid meeting on 8/10/2022, with a 

strong showing (~30 people). We are on-track to have a MACC for 

the team to review on September 1, 2022. 

19Aug22 – Bouten to tell NV5 which bid packages on which Bouten 

intends to bid. 

IN PROGRESS  

6.7.  Construction Commencement CLOSED  

6.8.  Building Permit 

6May22 – See item 5.4 above. 

IN PROGRESS  

6.9.  Graham Wind-Down 

19Aug22 – Graham’s final pay applications are with PMH Accounts 

Payable for payment processing. 

IN PROGRESS  

The above represents the writer’s understanding of the items discussed and/or conclusions reached. It is requested that any questions, comments, 

omissions, and/or errors to these meeting minutes be directed in writing to this office within three (3) business days. Please contact NV5. 

 

Next Online Meeting 

Date: Friday, September 2, 2022, at 9:00am CT / 8:00am MT / 7:00am PT; via TEAMS 

 

Upcoming In-Person Meetings 
August 23 – Bid Opening in Tri-Cities; Board Work Session (bcDG(?), Bouten, NV5, PMH) 

August 25 – Bid Opening in Tri-Cities (Bouten, NV5, PMH) 

August 30 – Bid Opening in Tri-Cities (Bouten, NV5, PMH) 



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

4 Month Outlook 

 

Page 1 RLB 

 

  

211015-PMH-4MonthOutlook.pdf

LEGEND
IN PERSON MEETING
NV5 & BCDG ON SITE

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

ONLINE MEETING HOLIDAY

DELIVERABLE

PMH MEETING 
NO ATTENDANCE BY

PROJECT TEAM
FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

31 01 02 03 04 05 06

07 08 09 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31 01 02 03

04 05 06 07 08 09 10

AUGUST 2022

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

BOARD MEETING
BOARD WORKSESSION

BID OPENING #1
BID OPENING #2

BID OPENING #3 **SEE ATTACHED APPENDIX FOR
BID PACKAGE DESCRIPTIONS**

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

28 29 30 31 01 02 03

04 05 06 07 08 09 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 01

02 03 04 05 06 07 08

SEPTEMBER 2022

BOARD MEETINGBOARD WORKSESSION

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

Review and approve
Maximum Allowable

Construction Cost (MACC)

BOUTEN ISSUES THE MACC

CITY ISSUES BUILDING PERMIT

STATE ISSUES
CERTIFICATE OF NEED

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING SUBMIT TO USDA FOR ADD'L
FINANCING

USDA DECISION ON
ADD'L FINANCING

UPDATED FEASIBILITY
STUDY FROM DZA

Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment D



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

4 Month Outlook 

 

Page 2 RLB 

 

 

211015-PMH-4MonthOutlook.pdf

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

25 26 27 28 29 30 01

02 03 04 05 06 07 08

09 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31 01 02 03 04 05

OCTOBER 2022

BOARD MEETINGBOARD WORKSESSION

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

Items to be rescheduled:

USDA PROVIDES
CONCURRENCE FOR

CONSTRUCTION

NTP to Bouten (tentative)

NEW FACILITY OPERATIONAL
MEETING (NV5-Led)

NEW FACILITY OPERATIONAL
MEETING (Merry-Led)

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

30 31 01 02 03 04 05

06 07 08 09 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 01 02 03

04 05 06 07 08 09 10

NOVEMBER 2022

BOARD MEETINGBOARD WORKSESSION

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

THANKSGIVING



ackage Opening Dates:    8/23/22 – 8/30/22 
 8/23/22 

1. BP-01 Earthwork & Site Utilities 
2. BP-02 Building Concrete 
3. BP-03 Structural Steel Supply 
4. BP-04 Structural Steel Erect 
5. BP-05 Metal Building 
6. BP-06 Applied Fireproofing 
7. BP-07 Masonry 
8. BP-08 EIFS 
9. BP-09a Roofing 
10. BP-09b Sheet Metal/Flashing 
11. BP-10 Metal Panel 
12. BP-17 Framing, Drywall, Insulation 

 8/25/22 
1. BP-11 Glazing/Storefront/ICU Doors 
2. BP-13 Casework & Millwork 
3. BP-14 Door & Hardware Supply 
4. BP-16 Overhead Coiling Doors 
5. BP-18 Floor Coverings 
6. BP-19 Terrazzo Flooring 
7. BP-20 Ceramic Tile 
8. BP-21 Acoustical Ceilings and Treatments 
9. BP-29 HVAC & Plumbing (Pre-approved MCCM) 
10. BP-30 Electrical & Systems (Pre-approved ECCM) 

 8/30/22 
1. BP-12 General Works 
2. BP-15 Door & Hardware Install  
3. BP-22 Paints and Coatings 
4. BP-23 Wall Coverings 
5. BP-24 Interior Specialties 
6. BP-25 Window Coverings 
7. BP-26 Elevators 
8. BP-27 Pneumatic Tube 
9. BP-28 Fire Suppression 
10. BP-31 Asphalt Paving and Markings 
11. BP-32 Site Concrete 
12. BP-33 Landscape & Irrigation (Design-Build) 
13. BP-34 Fencing 

 

PMH - Bouten MACC Bid Package Breakdown



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment E











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment F



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment G







































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment H























































































































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment J



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment K

















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment L















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment N



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment P









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Q



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment R



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment S



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment T



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment U





























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment V







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment W



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment X



























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Y



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Z










	Board Packet Cover Sheet
	08.23.22 Work Session Agenda
	8.25.22. Board  Meeting Agenda
	BOC Work Plan FY2022
	Copy of _2022 PATIENT CARE SCORECARD
	Copy of _2022 Strategic Plan Scorecard
	07.28.22  Board Minutes
	08-22-22 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA
	07.25.22 Finance Committee Minutes updated
	August 2022 CEO Memo_updated
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J
	Attachment K
	Attachment L
	Attachment M
	Attachment N
	Attachment O
	Attachment P
	Attachment Q
	Attachment R
	Attachment S
	Attachment T
	Attachment  U
	Attachment V
	Attachment W
	Attachment X
	Attachment Y
	Attachment Z
	Attachment JJ



